
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Meeting: Thursday, 16th January, 2020
   at 2.00 pm (Committee Room No.4)

Group Meetings at 1.15 p.m.

A G E N D A
PART ONE

1.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

2.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

3.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

4.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

5.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  



6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 30th October, 2019.

5 - 12

FOR DECISION 

(R) 7.  Five-Year Estate-Based Asset Management Plans 2020-2025 
 

13 - 16

(D) 8.  Syrian Resettlement Programme 
 

17 - 20

(D) 9.  Women's Community Matters: Provision of Top-up Funding 
 

21 - 22

(D) 10.  Housing Maintenance Investment Programme 2020-2021 
 

23 - 30

(D) 11.  Hughes Brothers and Sure Group - Fourth Year Review 
 

31 - 34

(D) 12.  Adelphi Court: Extension of Lease 
 

35 - 36

(R) 13.  Housing Revenue Account 2020-2021 
 

37 - 46

PART TWO 

FOR DECISION 

(D) 14.  Homeless Advice Team  

NOT FOR PUBLICATION BY VIRTUE OF PARAGRAPH 2 OF PART ONE 
OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AND 

ACCESS TO INFORMATION (VARIATION) ORDER 2006

(D) 15.  Income and Debt Recovery Team  

NOT FOR PUBLICATION BY VIRTUE OF PARAGRAPH 2 OF PART 
ONE OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION (VARIATION) ORDER 2006

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council



HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM MEMBERS

Councillors: Hamilton (Chairman)
Barlow
Blezard
Brook
Burley
Gawne
W. McClure
McEwan
Robson

Tenant Reps: Mrs M. Anderson
Mr J. Christie
Mr A. McIntosh

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:
Paula Westwood
Democratic Services Officer 
(Member Support)
01229 876322
pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Wednesday 8th January, 2020.



This page is intentionally left blank



HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Meeting: Monday 30th October, 2019
at 2.00 p.m. (Committee Room No. 4)

PRESENT:- Councillors Hamilton (Chairman), Burley, Gawne, Johnston (Minute No’s 
21-24 only) and McEwan.

Tenant Representatives:- Mrs M. Anderson and Mr A. McIntosh.

Officers Present:- Janice Sharp (Assistant Director - Housing), Les Davies 
(Maintenance and Asset Manager and Paula Westwood (Democratic Services Officer 
- Member Support). 

19 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Barlow, Brook and 
Robson.  Councillor Johnston had attended as a substitute Member.

20 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 9th September, 2019 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

21 – Future Use of Eamont Close Community Centre and Guest Bedroom

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted a report regarding consideration of the 
future use of Eamont Close Community Centre and guest bedroom.  Both of these 
facilities were situated within the Eamont Close development and the provision 
stemmed back to when the development had been classed as sheltered 
accommodation for older people and had a resident Warden, part of whose duties 
was to manage the Community Centre and guest bedroom.  It had been noted that 
the Council had moved away from employing resident Wardens many years ago and 
since then, particularly over 15 years or so, the Community Centre and guest 
bedroom had been managed by Residents.

Guest Bedroom

It had been quite common practice to provide a guest bedroom for relatives to stay 
when visiting Tenants in sheltered accommodation.  The current charge was £7.50 
per night and the records indicated very little use (only once or twice a year) over the 
recent past.  On a practical level, such a facility needs input on a regular basis from 
managing its use and collection of charges, through to ensuring it was safe for use, 
cleaning and making ready when there was a booking.  The charges did not reflect 
the cost of managing the facility. 

Having regard to the future use of the guest bedroom, it would not be practical for the 
Housing Service to manage it on a daily basis.

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



Community Centre

Over the years, the Residents’ association had been active in opening the facility on 
a daily basis, although the events had slowly declined over some years.  The usage 
of the Community Centre was often dependent on a few volunteers to make it work.

In view of the current position with the facility, consideration had been given to the 
future use.  In seeking a solution, meetings had taken place in Spring 2019 with 
Residents of Eamont Close and surrounding areas and the three Ward Councillors 
for North Walney.  The initial meeting had been well attended and there had been a 
feeling that Residents wanted to maintain some form of Community Centre as there 
was no other community facility on North Walney.  However, it had been recognised 
that the facility was not utilised to its full capacity with some rooms not being used.  A 
briefing paper from that meeting had been included as an appendix to the report.

Subsequent meetings had taken place with a sub group comprising of Residents and 
Members and it had been agreed that the Assistant Director of Housing should look 
at a feasibility design of the site to look at converting the site to accommodate two 
bungalows with a smaller Community Centre being retained.

Chris Bugler, Chartered Architect, had proposed a feasibility design of two, two-
bedroomed bungalows with a smaller Community Centre central to the design, which 
had also been included as an appendix to the report.

On 24th September, 2019 a further meeting had taken place with Residents and 
Members to present the design and gain views from Residents.  All those present 
had agreed, in principle, to the proposed changes.  A copy of notes taken at that 
meeting had been included in an appendix to the report.

Members had been requested to note that the proposed arrangement would create 
two wheelchair-accessible ground-floor flats and in terms of re-letting the resultant 
properties, the area was popular and it was envisaged that there would be demand 
for them.

A further report would be put before this Forum in January 2020 when costings and 
options had been further explored. 

RECOMMENDED:-  

1. To note the information on the consultation with Residents and Members;

2. To agree that the Assistant Director – Housing would investigate the option and 
costs to convert the building into two separate unites of wheelchair accessible 
accommodation with a smaller Community Centre;

3. To note that the Assistant Director – Housing, in consultation with the Director 
of Resources, had appointed Chris Bugler (Chartered Architect) to carry out an 
initial feasibility design of the proposed conversion, followed by a detailed 
design and cost evaluation; the appointment was for the duration of the project; 
and

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



4. To agree that once a detailed design and cost evaluation had been agreed, 
Officers would procure a suitable qualified Contractor to undertake the work.

22 – Performance Information Report

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted information relating to the Housing 
Performance Indicators for 2019/2020 in comparison with previous years.  The 
information is attached at Appendix 1 to these Minutes.  

RESOLVED:- To note the information.

23 – Planned Investment and Planned Maintenance Expenditure 2019-2020

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted information relating to the Planned 
Investment and Planned Maintenance Programme for 2019/2020.  The information is 
attached at Appendix 2 to these Minutes.

RESOLVED:- To note the information.

REFERRED ITEMS

THE FOLLOWING MATTERS ARE REFERRED TO COUNCIL FOR DECISION

24 – Asset Management Strategy 2020-2025

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted a report with the purpose of seeking 
Members’ approval to publish and implement the Housing Department’s 2020-2025 
Asset Management Strategy.  

She advised that the Housing Department produced a detailed Asset Management 
Strategy every five years.  The Strategy sets out the Council’s strategic long-term 
approach to managing Council housing assets.  The Housing Department’s vision 
was to provide well maintained estates where people choose to live.  The Strategy 
provides detailed analysis with regard to:-

1. Sustainability
2. Stock condition
3. Housing demand 
4. Business risks 
5. Investment priorities

A copy of the draft Strategy for 2020-2025 had been appended to the report.

In summary, the 2020-2025 Asset management Strategy sets out the Council’s 
strategic long-term approach to managing the Council’s housing assets and sets out 
a number of key objectives with regard to maintenance investments, compliance and 
service delivery over the next five years. The Strategy does not include specific 
details of the type and nature of investment works required on each estate.

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



It had been noted that Officers were in the process of analysing the Stock Condition 
findings to enable the results to be incorporated into individual Asset Management 
Plans for each of the Council’s five housing estates.  These supporting documents 
would contain detailed information about each community with regard to tenure, stock 
condition and housing demand to help identify, implement and monitor the short to 
medium-term estate-based investment priorities.  Each plan would contain details of 
properties most in need of improvement and would ensure investments were 
prioritised on a “just in time” and “worst first basis”.

Officers would provide Members with a further detailed report containing each estate 
based investment plan for consideration at their meeting to be held on 16th January 
2020.

RECOMMENDED:- 

1. To agree the content of the Housing Department’s 2020-2025 Asset 
Management Strategy;

2. To agree to prioritise future investments to housing related assets based on the 
results of the sustainability model scoring matrix; and

3. To agree that Officers would produce a new five-year Asset Management 
Investment Plan for each of the Council’s five housing management areas for 
Members’ consideration at their meeting to be held on 16th January, 2020.

The meeting closed at 2:34 p.m.

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



HOUSING PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

Arrears & Collection- Dwellings (exc. Dispersed) Actual 
2017/18

Actual 
2018/19

Apr-June       
2019/20

Apr-Sept 
2019/20

Apr-Dec 
2019/20

Apr-Mar 
2019/20

£ Rent & Service Charges due (Excluding empty properties) £10,913,680 £10,638,866 £2,658,734 £5,534,578   

£ Rent loss due to empty dwellings (voids)   £47,424 £91,651   

£ Current Arrears £473,551 £477,382 £526,760 £521,512   

£ Former Arrears £300,205 £279,954 £306,171 £336,599   

£ Write Offs (Gross) £71,297 £142,675 £0 £0   

No. tenants evicted for rent arrears 19 14 2 5   

£ Rent Arrears UC claimants Unable to provide until October 2019 £232,224   

Arrears & Collection - Other Properties       

£ Rent arrears Dispersed  (Homeless) £2,586 £2,381 £2,091 £3,887   

£ Rent arrears Garages £7,789 £3,860 £5,686 £5,097.17   

£ Rent Arrears Shops £6,337 £3,565 £8,099 £3,852   

£ rent loss due to empty Garages  £1,536 £340 £766   

£ rent loss due to empty Shops  £0 £0 £0   

Voids & Lettings (General Needs)       

Total Dwellings 2579 2557 2555 2551   

Total number of re-lets 255 207 60 132   

%  of re-lets accepted on first offer 63.1% 57.4% 58.3% 64.8%   

Number of re-lets that underwent Major Works 84 73 19 42   

Average re-let time in days (all re-lets) 54 61 65 62   

Number of units vacant and available for letting at 
period end 

7 5 9 awaiting info   

Number of units vacant but unavailable for letting at 
period end 

28 43 38 awaiting info   

No.tenancies terminated 189 223 55 117   

Dwelling void at end of reporting period  48 46 35   

Tenancy Turnover % 7.3% 8.7% 2.2% 4.6%   

Major Works & Cyclical Maintenance       

Percentage of dwellings with  a gas safety certificate 
renewed by anniversary  100% 100% 100%   

Percentage of homes that fail to meet the Decent Homes 
Standard   0% 0%   

Homelessness FROM APRIL 2018       

Average days in temporary (dispersed) accommodation 58.8 61 61 50   

Average days in B&B accommodation 5.81 6.6 18 14   

Number of triage assessments 528 137 300   

Number of Homeless Prevention cases opened 146 29 67   

Number of Homeless Relief cases opened 142 45 108   

Number that failed to attend appointments 73 27 55   

Number of Successful Prevention cases 95 26 58   

Number of Successful Relief cases 77 40 88   

Number cases closed without successful outcome 34 20 29   
Number of decisions made that main housing duty is not 
owed 16 4 7   

Number owed the main housing duty (final duty)

Unable to 
provide 

until 
2018/19

6 0 0   

Employees       

Average permanent employee headcount 43 50 49 49   

Page 9

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



Number of leavers 9 6 0 0   

Ave. working days lost / sickness absence 11.3 14.1 21.3 19   

Customer Complaints       

The number of Stage 1 complaints upheld in the year 3 5 awaiting info awaiting info   

Direct Debit Payers       
Total number of direct debit payers (includes full and 
partial)    949   

Water Charge Collection       

Number of rent agreements where a water support tariff or 
help to pay scheme is in place 552 801 875 891   

Housing Register       

Cumbria Choice Register- Total number of applications that 
are Active or Under Review Active for the period shown 1127 1419 1430 1365   

Cumbria Choice Register- Total number of new applications 
submitted in the period shown 865 835 165 335   

Housing Stock       

Houses 1205 1188 1185 1180   

Flats 1218 1213 1214 1215   

Bungalows 156 156 156 156   

General Needs Dwellings 2579 2557 2555 2551   

Dispersed 13 17 18 17   

Homeless (Cold Weather Provision) 0 0 0 0   

New Lives Project 2 2 0 0   

Adelphi Court 12 12 12 12   

Total Dwelling Stock 2606 2588 2585 2580   

Community Centres 5 4 4 4   

Leaseholds 215 219 219 219   

Garages 504 504 504 504   

Shops 19 19 19 19   

TOTAL PROPERTIES 3349 3334 3331 3326   

RTB & Land Values       

£ Houses £779,460 £741,265 £164,980 £394,580   

£ Flats £47,700 £88,000 £0 £0   

£ Bungalows £0 £0 £0 £0   

£ Land £0 £0 £0 £0   

TOTAL £827,160 £829,265 £164,980 £394,580   

Sold 2018/19 Sold YTD

17 8

4 0

0 0

0 0

Page 10

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



SCHEME PROCUREMENT
TYPE

AVAILABLE
BUDGET

EXPENDITURE TO
DATE

ESTIMATED
START DATE

ESTIMATED
COMPLETION DATE CONTRACTOR Leaseholders

affected?

GREENGATE ESTATE RE-
ROOFING WORKS

Procure Plus Holdings £900,000 £ 24,696 1.4.2019 31.3.2020 DLP Roofing No
WINDOW & DOOR
REPLACEMENTS

VARIOUS HOUSING AREAS
Procure Plus Holdings £200,000 £ 224,999 1.4.2019 31.3.2020 RICHMOND

JOINERY No

WALNEY RENDER & DAMP
PROOFING WORKS

Procure Plus Holdings £320,000 £ 142,656 1.4.2019 31.3.2020 DLP Roofing Yes

LOWER HINDPOOL RE-
ROOFING WORKS (HOUSES)

Procure Plus Holdings £217,500 £ - 1.9.2019 31.3.2020 DLP Roofing No

LOWER HINDPOOL RE-
ROOFING WORKS (FLATS)

Procure Plus Holdings £208,000 £ 109,246 1.4.2019 31.3.2020 DLP Roofing Yes

COMMUNAL ENTRANCE
LIGHTING

Procure Plus Holdings £40,000 £ - 1.11.2019 31.3.2020 K WILSON Yes

COMMUNAL ENTRANCE
PAINTING

Procure Plus Holdings £10,000 £ - 1.1.2020 31.3.2020 GEORGE JONES Yes

EWAN CLOSE REPLACEMENT
DOORS

Procure Plus Holdings £96,000 £ - 1.10.2019 31.3.2020 SSS GROUP Yes

REWIRES Procure Plus Holdings £306,000 £ 168,974 1.4.2019 31.3.2020 K WILSON No

HEATING Procure Plus Holdings £420,000 £ 317,015 1.4.2019 31.3.2020 AFM GAS Ltd No

PAINTING Procure Plus Holdings £180,000 £ - 17.8.2019 31.3.2020 G JONES Yes

HOUSING MAINTENANCE COMMITMENTS 2019-20

Funding Available EXPENDITURE TO
DATE

Weekly
Available Gross Comm. as a % funds available

Tenant Demand Repairs £ 1,241,357 £ 461,664 £ 23,872 37%

Voids £ 538,997 £ 357,363 £ 10,365 66%

Gas Servicing £ 311,572 £ 148,217 £ 5,992 48%

Decoration Vouchers £ 30,000 £ 8,442 £ 577 28%

Environmental Impmts £ 5,000 £ 318 £ 96 6%

Disabled Adaptations £ 100,000 £ 67,979 £ 1,923 68%

Electrical Testing £ 61,000 £ 46,313 £ 1,173 76%

Door Entry Maintenance £ 19,176 £ 13,721 £ 369 72%Gas - Building/Replacement £75,000.00 £12,905.00

 

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank



            Part One

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting: 16th January 2020

Reporting Officer: Janice Sharp
 Assistant Director-Housing    

(R)

Title:  Five-year Estate-Based Asset Management Plans     
2020-2025

Summary and Conclusions: 

The purpose of this report is to agree the content of the Five-year Asset 
Management Plan for each of the Council’s five housing estates.  Each plan 
contains investment proposals for the period 2020 to 2025.  The investment 
proposals are based on the findings of the 2019 Stock Condition Survey. 

Recommendations: 

Members are requested to:

1. Endorse the sustainability model scoring outcomes and where appropriate 
prevent unsustainable investment to properties classified as “difficult to 
let”;

2. Agree the content of the 2020-2025 Asset Management Plans - a copy of 
which has been placed in the Members’ Room; and

3. Agree with the continuing delivery of these work streams via the Procure 
Plus framework.

Report

The purpose of this report is to agree the content of the Five-year Asset 
Management Plan for each of the Council’s five housing estates.  Each plan 
contains investment proposals for the period 2020 to 2025.  The investment 
proposals are based on the findings of the 2019 Stock Condition Survey.

The principles adopted in the 2020-2025 Asset Management Plans continue 
with the priorities set out in the 2020-2025 Asset Management Strategy and 
seek to ensure:

 The Council maintains the Decent Homes Standards;

 The aspirations of Tenants are considered and incorporated within the 
Programme;

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



 Collaborative working with other housing providers and Contractors to 
improve delivery of planned and responsive repair services; 

 Properties are safe, energy efficient and weatherproof;

 Investments are prioritised on a ‘just-in-time’ and ‘worst –first’ basis; and

 Investments are reviewed in conjunction with the sustainability model 
results shown in the 2020-2025 Asset Management Strategy.

Five-year Estate Based Asset Management Plans

The 2019 Stock Condition Survey indicates planned maintenance costs over 
a 30-year business planning period are estimated to be around £84,857,759. 
This equates to an average of £31,805 per property. 

Whilst the survey contains investment over a 30-year period (long-term 
investments), this report focuses on a range of short-term major work 
investments which need to be delivered over the next five years to ensure 
properties remain “safe, energy efficient and waterproof”. 

These investments will be delivered on a “just in time” and “worst first” basis.

The 2020-2025 Asset Management Plans contain detailed five-year 
investment plans for Ormsgill, Walney, Dalton, Central and Roosegate 
housing estates. Each plan contains information about the estate, its 
amenities, tenure types and the likelihood of the estate remaining sustainable 
over the next five years.

The sustainability review included assessment of wider social and economic 
factors (National Deprivation Indices) to help us better understand and predict 
sustainability and includes indices for crime, barriers to housing service, 
income, health and education. The review also contained an assessment of 
local factors relating to rent arears, void levels and maintenance expenditure.

The model contains one of four possible outcomes:

Properties scoring 80%-100% Will be classed as ‘Sustainable and 
Popular’ and have a Green Light for 
investment.

Properties scoring 65%-79% Will be classed as ‘Sustainable but Less 
Popular’ and have a Green Light for 
investment.

Properties scoring 35%-64% Will be classed as ‘Sustainable with 
Specific Problems and will have an Orange 
Light for investment caution.

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



Properties scoring 1%-34% Will be classed as ‘Difficult to let’ and have 
a Red Light to prevent unsustainable 
investment

Members are asked to endorse the sustainability model scoring outcomes and 
where appropriate prevent unsustainable investment to properties classified 
as “Difficult to let”.

The following sustainability scores were identified for each estate;

Central 50 Sustainable with specific problems
Dalton 91 Sustainable and popular
Ormsgill 58 Sustainable with specific problems
Roosegate 71 Sustainable but less popular
Walney 89 Sustainable and popular 

Five-year Investment Priorities

The 2019 Stock Condition Survey identified the following key areas of 
investment between 2020 and 2025:

 Replacing existing PVCu windows which are approaching the end of their 
component life;

 Upgrading old heating boilers and heating systems which are approaching 
the end of their component life;

 Upgrading old domestic power and lighting systems which are 
approaching the end of their component life;

 Replacing main roof coverings which are approaching the end of their 
component life;

 Replacing flat roof coverings which are approaching the end of their 
component life;

 Replacing external wall finishes which are approaching the end of their 
component life;

 Replacing concrete lintels, concrete window sills and chimney stacks 
which are approaching the end of their component life;

 Testing and certifying all gas appliances annually;
 Testing and certifying all electrical installations on a five-year cycle;
 Painting and repairing timber components on a six-year cycle;
 Upgrading communal lighting with energy efficient bulbs or fittings;
 Upgrading security doors to communal areas; and
 Undertaking roofing and damp improvements to 10 blocks of garages 

annually.

(i) Legal Implications

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



Underlying contracts and GDPR Contracts for all work streams delivered via 
Procure Plus are already in place. 

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation requires officers to ensure contractors risk assessments 
and method statements continue to be suitable and sufficient for the work to 
be undertaken.

There are potential risks from possible litigation in the form of disrepair claims 
should the planned improvements not be completed within the specified time 
frames. 

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has significant financial implications outlined in the body 
of the report and contained in the 2020-2025 Asset Management Plans – a 
copy of which has been placed in the Members’ Room for information and 
reference.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has implications with regard to health and safety.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 16

Agenda Item 7



   Part One

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting: 16th January 2020

Reporting Officer: Janice Sharp
 Assistant Director-Housing    

(D)

Title: Syrian Resettlement Programme

Summary and Conclusions: 

The purpose of this report is to update Members on the above programme 
and further consider the Borough’s approach. 

Recommendations: 

Members are recommended to:

 Note the information contained in this report; and

 Agree the Assistant Director – Housing be authorised to continue to make 
residential accommodation (flat-type properties) available from the 
Council’s housing stock to assist in the resettlement of Syrian refugees, 
should it be appropriate and practical to do so, and suspend the normal 
requirements of the Choice-Based Lettings system in such circumstances.  

Background

Cumbria has agreed to contribute to the national resettlement programme and 
accommodate refugees.  To ensure the resettlement of the refugees, a 
framework was established from relevant organisations and a local liaison 
group of key local agencies was set up.

Report

The Council previously agreed to contribute to Cumbria Resettlement 
Programme by providing accommodation for up to 10 people each year over 
the four years of the programme.  (HMF 26 November 2015 – Council Minute 
54 refers). 

Initially it was envisaged the type of property needed would be family-sized 
houses, ie three and four-bedroomed.  Having regard to the limited availability 
and demand for such property within our own stock, it was decided by Council 
that Officers would work with the Private Sector to identify suitable property.  
However, from our experience of the first refugees, it became evident a range 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



of properties would be required.  As such, in June, 2017, HMF was asked to 
reconsider the Council’s approach to identify suitable accommodation to make 
the process easier to deliver.  It was agreed the Council would identify 
suitable properties within its stock leading up to the date the refugees arrived - 
in particular, two-bedroomed flats which are more readily available and there 
is limited demand.

To date, five families have been accommodated in our stock of two-
bedroomed properties between October, 2017 and October, 2018 and, in the 
main, the tenancies have been sustained successfully.

The County have now approached the Council to contribute further to the 
Cumbrian Resettlement Programme by providing accommodation for four 
families (up to four people per family) due to arrive between December, 2019 
and December, 2020.

Should this be agreed, the Council would continue to look to identify Private 
Sector property to meet its commitment during the period of the programme.

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications. Participation in the 
resettlement scheme is voluntary. Cumbria has agreed to contribute to the 
national resettlement programme and accommodate refugees.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.  The framework in place 
across Cumbria will make resources available to cover rent loss whilst waiting 
for the arrival of the refugees and the cost of furniture, floor covering etc.  It is 
likely the refugees will be entitled to benefits to meet the housing costs. 

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation. 

In accordance with Choice-Based Lettings (CBL) Policy, senior management 
of each partner have authority to allocate properties outside the CBL scheme.  
Following allocation of a Barrow Borough Council tenancy, service users will 
be treated in accordance with CBL policy. 

Page 18

Agenda Item 8



(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

HMF reports of 25 November, 2015 & 15 June 2017.

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



             Part One 

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting: 16th January 2020

Reporting Officer: Janice Sharp
 Assistant Director-Housing    

(D)

Title: Women’s Community Matters:  Provision of Top-up 
Funding

Summary and Conclusions: 

The purpose of this report is to seek Members’ approval to Barrow Borough 
Council providing top-up funding to Women’s Community Matters to enable 
them to continue to deliver support to vulnerable families at risk of 
homelessness during 2019/20 and 2020/21.

Recommendations: 

Members are asked to approve provision of top-up funding of £8,258 from 
MCHLG Homeless Prevention Grant allocated for 2019/20 and top-up funding 
of £8,144 for 2020/21 to Women’s Community Matters to enable support to 
continue to be delivered to vulnerable families at risk of homelessness.

Report

In April, 2019, for the financial year 2019/20, Barrow Borough Council 
received funding of £11,648 from Cumbria County Council Supporting People 
Grant to support victims of domestic abuse which we passed to Women’s 
Community Matters (WCM) to provide relevant support to victims referred to 
the project.

I have been advised by Cumbria County Council, Barrow Borough Council will 
receive further funding in April, 2020 for the financial year 2020/21 of 
c.£11,700 to support victims which will again be passed to WCM. 

The support delivered by the project includes emotional well-being, legal 
advice and housing-related support.  This support is vital to enable clients to 
move forward with their lives. 

The cost of the support WCM provides to victims and survivors of domestic 
abuse exceeds the amount Barrow Borough Council pass to WCM.  
Additional funds are continually being raised through fund raising efforts and 
from donations and WCM allocate some of the funds they receive from other 
initiative grants where possible.

Page 21

Agenda Item 9



This year 2019/20, there is a shortfall of funding and it is predicted there will 
be a shortfall next year 2020/21 due to the increasing demand for the services 
WCM provide requiring them to commit to additional staff time. 

Members’ approval is sought to provide funding of £8,258 this year and 
funding of £8,144 next year to WCM to cover the shortfall to enable the 
project to continue to offer support to families at risk of homelessness due to 
domestic abuse.  The top-up of the funding provided by Barrow Borough 
Council will ensure vulnerable families will be supported by specialist staff at 
the WCM centre and enable the ongoing working relationship with staff at 
Barrow Borough Council Housing Service to continue.

The funding will be provided from the MCHLG Homeless Prevention Grant 
allocated to Barrow Borough Council to assist with the cost of homeless 
prevention, in accordance with the Homeless Reduction Act implemented in 
April 2018. 

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The provision of £8,258 for 2019/20 and £8,144 for 2020/21 is funded from 
the Homeless Prevention Grant.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 22

Agenda Item 9



            Part One

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting: 16th January 2020

Reporting Officer: Janice Sharp
 Assistant Director-Housing    

(D)

Title:  Housing Maintenance Investment Programme 2020/21

Summary and Conclusions: 

The purpose of this report is to agree the housing maintenance expenditure 
profile for the 2020/21 financial year.  The proposed investment profile and 
priorities are based on the findings of the 2019 Stock Condition Survey. 

Recommendations: 

Members are requested to:

1. Note progress on achieving and maintaining the Decent Homes Standard; 

2. Agree the annual investment profile shown at Appendix 1; 

3. Agree continued delivery of investments through Procure Plus; 

Report

The purpose of this report is to agree the housing maintenance expenditure 
profile for the financial year 2020/21.  The proposed investment profile and 
priorities are based on the findings of the 2019 Stock Condition Survey.

The principles adopted in the 2020/21 investment programme continue with 
the priorities set out in the 2020 Asset Management Strategy and seeks to 
ensure:

 The Council maintains the Decent Homes Standards;

 The aspirations of Tenants are considered and incorporated within the 
Programme;

 Collaborative working with other housing providers and Contractors to 
improve delivery of planned and responsive repair services;

 Properties are safe, energy efficient and weatherproof; and

 Investments are prioritised on a just in time and worst-first basis.

Page 23

Agenda Item 10



1. Progress during the Current Year 2019/20

Decent Homes Standard

The 2019 stock condition survey highlighted one property that failed the 
decent homes standard.  This property has recently been improved and no 
longer fails the standard.  The Council housing stock is therefore 100% 
compliant with regard to the decent homes standard.

Planned Maintenance

Delivery of planned improvements via the Procure Plus framework continued 
during 2019/20.  A summary of the progress made delivering current year 
investments is shown below;

 Greengate re-roofing and external works are 50% complete;
 External painting improvements are 75% complete; 
 Heating improvements are 90% complete;
 Rewire improvements are 80% complete;
 Lower Hindpool re-roofing works are 60% complete;
 Walney damp and external works are 80% complete;
 Ewan Close communal door replacements are 90% complete;
 Window replacements are 100% complete;
 Fire Risk Assessment works are 95% complete; and
 Legionella compliance for shops is 100% complete.

All work streams shown above are (subject to weather conditions) scheduled 
to be completed by the end of the financial year (31st March 2020).  

The arrangements with Procure Plus continue to be an effective delivery 
method in terms of value for money, when compared with historical costs.

2. Investment Profile for 2020/21

Attached at Appendix 1 is the proposed investment profile for 2020/21. 

The HRA baseline model allocation for 2020/21 is based on an asset portfolio 
containing 2571 (forecast at 1st April 2020) properties:

Maintenance Allowance (per property £1216.65)      £3,128,012

Major Repairs (per property £789.96)                        £2,031,000

Total                                                                           £5,159,012

Page 24

Agenda Item 10



3. Investment Priorities

The 2019 stock condition survey identifies investment priorities over a 30 year 
period (long-term investments); this report focuses on a range of cyclical and 
major work investments that need to be delivered over the next 12 months to 
ensure properties remain “safe, energy efficient and waterproof”. 

These investments will be delivered on a “just in time” and “worst first” basis.

Key areas of investment include;

Roofing Improvements

The stock condition survey identified a significant number of concrete roof 
tiles that are beyond their component life expectancy.  Some of these roofing 
tiles are now obsolete and others have become porous over time. I wish to 
advise Members that primary areas of investment should be directed towards 
properties in Dalton, Ormsgill and Central.

External Improvements

The stock condition survey identified a range of problems with external 
masonry (pointing), rendering and associated defects to elements such as 
concrete cills, chimneys, blocked cavities and lintols.  I wish to advise 
Members that primary areas of investment should be directed towards 
properties on the Newbarns and Abbotsmead estates.  I further advise 
Members that it would be cost effective to install new PVCu windows to the 
affected properties at the time of carrying the external repair work.

Window Improvements

The stock condition survey established a general understanding that the 
existing windows to properties are beyond their component life expectancy as 
they are generally in excess of 30 years old. Investments will seek to upgrade 
windows in conjunction with external works and prioritise replacement 
windows to the remaining housing areas as detailed in the 5 year estate 
based Asset Management Plans.

Heating Improvements

Investments will seek to upgrade old heating boilers and heating systems that 
are approaching the end of their component life.

Rewire Improvements

Investments will seek to upgrade old domestic power and lighting systems 
that are approaching the end of their component life.

At your meeting held on 1st November 2018, Members agreed to the 
appointment of a range of local and regional contractors from the Procure 

Page 25

Agenda Item 10



Plus framework. The following contractors have been appointed to undertake 
work for the following work streams;

• Painting Improvements – George Jones and Sons;
• Heating Improvements – Sure Maintenance;
• Window and Doors – Richmond Joiners and Builders Ltd;
• Electrical Rewiring and Testing – Keith Wilson Electrical;
• Re-Roofing Works and External Works – DLP Services (Northern) Ltd; and
• Aids and Adaptation Works – DLP Services (Northern) Ltd.

Officers are pleased to report that all of the above contractors have performed 
well during this financial year and recommend continuation of their 
appointment from 1st April 2020. 

Members are asked to agree that the major investments identified in this 
report continue to be delivered via the Procure Plus framework to ensure the 
Council delivers social value benefits as well as additional savings on fees 
and efficiencies through streamlined management and administration.

(i) Legal Implications

Underlying contracts and GDPR Contracts for all work streams delivered via 
Procure Plus are in place. 

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation requires officers to ensure contractors risk assessments 
and method statements are suitable and sufficient for the work to be 
undertaken.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has significant financial implications outlined in the body 
of the report and contained in Appendix 1.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has implications with regard to health and safety.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Page 26

Agenda Item 10



Background Papers

Nil

Page 27

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 - Annual Investment Profile (Housing Maintenance)

Total Budget £5,159,011 £5,197,969    

Routine Property Repairs Cyclical Repairs Major Improvement Work MRA - Capitalised Improvement Work

£768,909     Tenant Demand Repairs £288,605     Gas Servicing/Breakdown £100,000     Disabled Adaptations £264,000     Rewires (PP)

£178,183      Preliminary Costs £28,560     Door Entry Maintenance £5,000     Asbestos Surveys £360,000     Heating and Insulation (PP)

-£10,000       Rechargeable Repair Income £180,000     External Decoration (PP) £15,000     Decoration (After Major Works) £18,000     Bathrooms (PP)

-£14,106       Leasehold Repairs Income £81,000     Electrical Testing £20,000     Fencing and Gates £50,000     Kitchens (PP - VOIDS)

£15,000     Tipping Charges £40,000     Communal Lighting (PP) £452,500     Window Replacements (PP)

Void Property Repairs £10,284     TV Aerials £10,000     Communal Painting (PP) £438,000     Re-Roofing Houses (PP)

£40,000     Consultancy Fees £30,000     Garage Improvements £306,000     Re-Roofing Flats (PP)

£624,718     Void Property Repairs £7,800     Legal Fees £18,000     Shop Improvements £67,500     Flat Roof Improvements (PP)

£156,395      Preliminary Costs -£37,022       Service Charge Income £5,000     Community Centres £75,000     Communal Door replacements

£5,000     EEB Improvements

£461,686     External Rendering/Pointing (PP) PP = Procure Plus

£100,000     Major Responsive Repairs 

           £0       Service Charge Income

 

£1,704,099 614,226.67 £809,686 £2,031,000  

I:\Cttee Mins and Reps\Reports\19_20\HMF\HMF16JAN20\APPENDIX 1 - Annual Investment Profile (Housing Maintenance) 08/01/20

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                             Part One

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting:       16th January 2020

Reporting Officer: Janice Sharp
 Assistant Director-Housing    

(D)

Title:  Hughes Brothers & Sure Group – Fourth Year Review

Summary and Conclusions: 

In the four-year period since the appointment of Sure Group and Hughes 
Brothers, I am pleased to advise Members that both Contractors have 
delivered their respective services in line with the Contract requirements and 
Tenants in general appear satisfied with the quality of the services provided.  
The actual target cost of the contracted services provided by Sure Group and 
Hughes Brothers has increased by a small amount of 2.4% over the duration 
of the four-year Contract period and, as such, continues to offer the Council 
‘Best Value’.

Recommendations: 

Members are requested to agree to continue the appointment of Hughes 
Brothers and Sure Group in line with clause 2.3 of the Contract 
documentation.

Background

At your meeting held on 14th June 2018, Members agreed to continue the 
appointment of Hughes Brothers and Sure Group to provide a range of 
responsive and gas maintenance services for Council Tenants.  This 
agreement provided a further 12 month extension to the existing Contract 
arrangements.

The procurement was facilitated by Procure Plus Holdings under OJEU 
procedures.  The accompanying Contract notice was issued on the 26th 
March 2015 (Reference - 2015/S 063-111151).  The Contract terms and 
conditions require the Council to review the performance of each Contractor in 
line with clause 2.3 that states:

2.3 Upon the fourth anniversary of the Effective Date, the Council shall 
review: (a) the performance of the Contractor under this Agreement; 
and (b) whether this Agreement continues to provide Best Value.  If 
the Council determines that it is in the best interests of the Council to 
break the Agreement Period upon such anniversary, the Council may 
serve notice on the Contractor to break this Agreement and the 

Page 31

Agenda Item 11



parties shall commence Disengagement with effect from the date of 
such notice.

Report

In the four-year period since the appointment of Sure Group and Hughes 
Brothers, both Contractors have delivered their respective services in line with 
the Contract requirements and Tenants in general appear satisfied with the 
quality of the services provided.

The Contract includes Tenant-generated repair requests, repairs to void 
properties, gas servicing and maintenance and an out-of-hours emergency 
response service.

A brief summary of each Contractor’s performance is shown below:

SURE GROUP - Gas Servicing and Reactive Gas Repairs Contract

Sure Group has exceeded expectations with regard to the mobilisation and 
delivery of gas servicing and breakdown repairs within the Borough.  The 
remote help centre in Speke is available 24/7 on a freephone number.  The 
dedicated “Barrow” team process and handle all the Council’s gas-related 
enquiries from Tenants.  The help centre staff schedule and manage all gas 
servicing and provide a range of appointments for reactive gas repairs.  There 
are a range of alternative contact and appointment methods available to 
Tenants with records stored electronically on the contractor’s Vixen system.

Gas certificates and invoices are provided daily in an electronic format.  Client 
Staff are able to access live data records and produce a number of simple 
reports using a web-based portal facility.

Despite a small number of hard to access properties which require court 
action, Sure Group have consistently maintained 100% compliance with the 
gas regulations to ensure the Council fulfils its legal duties as a landlord.

Summary

 Quality of completed repairs is consistent;
 Customer satisfaction is high; and
 Number of appointments kept is high.

Performance 

 Properties with a valid LGSR certificate : 100%

HUGHES BROTHERS - Responsive Repairs and Void Contract

Hughes Brothers have provided a comprehensive range of responsive and 
void property repair services to the Council’s housing stock.  The quality of 
work produced is of a high standard. 

Page 32

Agenda Item 11



Hughes Brothers have invested in a number of software improvements to Epix 
and, as a result, it now provides a valuable source of information with regard 
to cost variations as it holds and stores photographic records of site-based 
activities. 

Hughes Brothers are keen to help the Council streamline other works areas 
such a void property management and are actively involved in developing the 
Eviid video capture software.  It is hoped these additional improvements will 
link to the Procure Plus materials ordering system and reduce void turnaround 
times.

Hughes Brothers responded positively to rectify performance shortfalls created 
by local staffing shortages and demonstrate a willingness to work with the 
Council and Procure Plus to facilitate ongoing service improvements. 

Key Performance Indicators are presently below the Housemark threshold, but 
remain acceptable.  Whilst there remains room for improvement, the trend is 
generally one of improvement over time.

Summary

 Quality of completed repairs is consistent;
 Customer satisfaction is high;
 Number of appointments kept is improving; and
 Team meetings between Client and Contractor are established for repairs 

and voids.

Performance
 
 Customer satisfaction of the work carried out : 96%

Recommendations

The actual target cost of the contracted services provided by Sure Group and 
Hughes Brothers has increased by a small amount of 2.4% over the duration 
of the four-year contract period and, as such, continues to offer the Council 
‘Best Value’. 

Members are requested to agree to the continuing appointment of Hughes 
Brothers and Sure Group in line with clause 2.3 of the contract documentation.

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no additional legal implications, subject to 
continuing monitoring of the contractors in line with the terms and conditions of 
the 2015 Responsive Repairs and Gas Servicing Contracts. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 11



(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no additional risk implications, subject to continuing 
monitoring of the contractors’ performance and service delivery in line with the 
terms and conditions of the 2015 Responsive Repairs and Gas Servicing 
Contracts.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications as these are service 
contracts that are budgeted for every year and were procured on a competitive 
basis. 

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications, subject to continuing monitoring of 
the contractors’ performance and service delivery in line with the terms and 
conditions of the 2015 Responsive Repairs and Gas Servicing Contracts.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has little impact on the Health and Wellbeing of users of 
this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 34

Agenda Item 11



   Part One 

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting: 16th January 2020

Reporting Officer: Janice Sharp
 Assistant Director-Housing    

(D)

Title: Adelphi Court: Extension of Lease

Summary and Conclusions: 

The purpose of this report is to agree to the extension of the lease for Adelphi 
Court with Richmond Fellowship, due to expire 3rd March, 2020 to 31st July, 
2020.

Recommendation: 

Members are requested to agree the extension of the lease for Adelphi Court 
with Richmond Fellowship to 31st July, 2020.

Report

As you are aware, Barrow Borough Council agreed a lease with Croftlands 
Trust, now merged with Richmond Fellowship to take over the management of 
Adelphi Court with the primary purpose of providing supported housing for 
people with mental health issues.

The lease was granted on 4th March, 2015 for a period of five years ending 3rd 
March, 2020.  I have confirmed with Richmond Fellowship they wish to 
continue to manage Adelphi Court and provide supported housing, dependant 
on them being successful when Cumbria County Council re-tender the 
framework and award funding accordingly to cover the cost of providing the 
support.  The current funding Richmond Fellowship receives provided by 
Cumbria County Council has been extended to 31st July, 2020. 

Richmond Fellowship has requested the current lease, expiring 3rd March, 
2020 be extended to 31st July to cover the period.  As stated previously, 
Richmond Fellowship want to continue to manage the project and sign a new 
lease, but until they know the outcome of the re-tendering – the framework 
which commences March, 2020 – they are unable to commit.

The project has been successful in enabling 11 residents to be 
accommodated in self-contained flats, supported by staff on site to sustain 
their tenancies with Richmond Fellowship. 

Page 35

Agenda Item 12



Members are therefore requested to agree the lease for Adelphi Court with 
Richmond Fellowship is extended to 31st July, 2020.

(i) Legal Implications

If agreed, then the appropriate extension agreement will need to be drawn up 
for signature by the parties. 

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The current annual rent is £45,000 and for the extension period this will be 
applied pro-rata.  If the current arrangements for Adelphi Court do not 
continue beyond July, a further report will be presented.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 36

Agenda Item 12



             Part One

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting: 16th January 2020

Reporting Officer: Janice Sharp
 Assistant Director-Housing    

(R)

Title:  Housing Revenue Account 2020/21

Summary and Conclusions: 

The purpose of the Report is to agree a Housing Revenue Account Budget for 
the 2020/21 financial year and provide the Expected Outturn Budget and 
balance for the current year.

Recommendations: 

Members are asked to:

1)  Note the information provided through the Report;

2)  Note the Expected Outturn Budget for 2019/20 is a surplus of £165,390 
     after the budgeted contribution to Earmarked Reserves of £379,720;

3)  Note the balances on the Expected Outturn Budget for 2019/20;

4)  Agree the basis on which the 2020/21 draft Budget is proposed in 3.1 to 
3.3;

5) Agree dwelling rent increase of 2.7% outlined in 4;

6)  Agree garage rent increase of 2.7% outlined in 5;

7)  Agree or note as outlined in 6.1, 6.2, 6.3 and 6.4 other additional 
considerations; and

8)   Agree the approach to matters raised in 7.1, 7.2, 7.3 and 7.4.

Background

Several significant factors have to be considered when drafting a HRA budget 
– one of which is the four-year period of a reduction in income due to the 
Government’s social rents policy to decrease rents by 1% which ends in 
March, 2020.  

Page 37

Agenda Item 13



The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government in setting out 
their rent policy for social housing from April, 2020 permit social rents being 
increased by CPI plus 1% for 2020/21; this means an increase of 2.7%.

This is relatively good news, however, another significant factor is the 
continuation of Right to Buy which saw an estimated loss in rental income of 
over £37,000 for 2019/20. 

Consequently, the rent income will remain challenged with the sale of Council 
properties through Right to Buy, the roll out of Universal Credit, increasing 
costs and inflation generally.

As such, the Council needs to remain focused on controlling expenditure to 
ensure there is sufficient provision to maintain the stock, provide services 
which meet tenants’ aspirations and takes into account the reducing numbers 
of dwellings. 

1. Expected Outturn Budget 2019/20

The outturn for the year forecasts a net surplus of £165,390 after the 
budgeted contribution to Earmarked Reserves of £379,720.

2. Balance on the Expected Outturn for 2019/20

The above is likely to result in the following movement in balances.

2.1 Major Repair Reserve balance as at 31 March 2019             £2,510,440

All Capital Schemes are on target for year-end and therefore no change 
is expected to the above reserve.

2.2   i)   Housing Revenue Earmarked Reserve at 31 March 2019 £2,241,235

        Budgeted Contribution to Reserve in year                     £   379,720

Forecast surplus                                                             £   165,390

               Estimated Balance at year end                                     £2,786,345

ii)   Housing Fund balance at 31 March 2019                         £1,000,000

               There is no change expected in the fund balance in year.

2.3   Voluntary Repayment Provision as at 31 March 2019  £ 7,319,050

Forecast Provision 2019/20 £ 816,520

Provision at year end £8,135,570

Loans repaid to 31 March 2019 £2,000,000

Loan maturing 2019/20 £1,000,000

Page 38

Agenda Item 13



3. HRA Budget 2020/21 Proposal

In proposing the budget for 2020/21 - attached at Appendix 1, the 
following factors have been taken into account:

3.1 An increase of rental income by CPI plus 1%: In total 2.7% increase for 
residential dwellings. 

3.2 A contingency of £50k has been retained in the proposed budget which is 
referred to below. 

3.3 Bad debt provision increased by £123,290 over the £168,920 calculated 
budget for 2019/20.    

4.  Dwelling Rents

4.1   In 2019/20, there were 53 weeks for which rent was due to be charged in 
the financial year.  As a result it was necessary to increase dwelling rents 
by 0.9% over the 48 collectable weeks to account for this.  This increase 
ensured Tenants were charged for the 53 weeks but also took into 
account the 1% decrease introduced by the Welfare Reform Act (2016). 
The effect this had on dwelling rents can be seen below.

52 Weeks 53 Weeks 48 Weeks
2017/18 £75.23 £81.50
2018/19 £74.41 £80.61
2019/20 £73.67 £81.34

Average rent 
increase over 48 
weeks = 0.73p per 
week

In order to ensure rents for 2020/21 were calculated fairly, it was 
necessary to revert the rent back to what it would have been based on a 
52 week year with the 1% decrease applied as per the final year of the 
old rent policy. Once the baseline rent was calculated, the permitted 
increase of CPI (1.7% as at September 2019) + 1% could be applied. 
This proposes a rent model which sees an increase of 2.7% to the 
baseline rents.

The proposed dwelling rents for 2020/21 (based on an average) are 
shown below:

52 Weeks 53 Weeks 48 Weeks

2018/19 £74.41 £80.61

2019/20 £73.67 £81.34

2020/21 £75.76 £82.07

2021/22 CPI + 1%

Average rent 
increase over 48 
weeks = 0.73p per 
week

Page 39

Agenda Item 13



4.2 The expenditure within the HRA is agreed through the democratic 
process, however, occasions arise which result in under and overspends 
with the account.

As agreed in the 2019/20 budget report the use of the earmarked HRA 
reserve manages budget volatility as and when required within the 
parameter of the overall agreed budget.  £105,720 has been added for 
2020/21.

The HRA fund balance will be assessed by the Director of Resources.

5. Garage Charges

The Council has discretion to set the appropriate rent for garages.  The 
reduction in social rents did not apply to garage rents and whilst this 
policy has been in place, garage rents were increased by 2% each year. 
2019/20 had 53 chargeable periods and garage rents were increased by 
2% in order to ensure we collected the ‘extra weeks’ rent. It was decided 
not to increase the rents any further for the 2019/20 year.

2020/21 is a normal 52 week financial year. It is proposed that garage 
rents are increased in line with dwelling rents for the 2020/21 financial 
year meaning an increase of 2.7%.  We propose to adopt this approach 
each year of the ‘new rent policy’ with garage rents being increased by 
CPI + 1% in the same way as dwelling rents. 

Increasing the rents each year has not had an adverse effect on voids or 
in re-letting garages.  The 2019/20 financial year has seen 52 new 
applications for garages, which is only 7 less compared to the same 
period last year.

The proposed garage rents for 2020/21 are shown below:

No 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
Increased 
Revenue 
2020/21

Garage rate 1 27 £7.24 £7.38 £7.58

Garage rate 2 451 £9.99 £10.19 £10.46

TOTAL 478 £225,646 £230,157 £236,150

£5,993

6. Additional considerations

6.1 Service charges eg communal area cleaning

Agree Officers increase charges as necessary to reflect any increases in 
contractual arrangements for the delivery of the service.  Charges to be 
adjusted as and when necessary to reflect recovery of the cost of 
provision with no additional administrative costs.

Page 40

Agenda Item 13



6.2 Service & Facility Charges for Dispersed & Furnished Properties

The future funding of service charges has now been agreed and it will be 
exempt from Universal Credit and the charges can continue to be 
claimed by housing benefit.

6.3 Leasehold Policy and Recharging Framework

It is the Council’s intention to introduce a Leasehold Policy in 2020/21, 
which will include a recharge framework for leaseholders to assist in the 
recovery of service charges and costs for qualifying works so as to 
ensure the Council recovers monies due efficiently and in a timely 
manner.  Fees to cover Officers’ time administering re-sale enquiries and 
other applicable functions will also form part of the framework to ensure 
the Council are recovering any costs associated with leaseholders that 
they are entitled to. 

6.4 Adelphi Court 

The block of 12 flats is leased to Richmond Fellowship as a supported 
housing scheme, and the four-year lease expires in March, 2020.  

A report is being presented to this meeting requesting Members agree to 
extend the lease until 31st July, 2020, with Richmond Fellowship paying 
the annual rent pro rata until then.  Richmond Fellowship is unable to 
commit to signing a new lease in March until they have confirmation they 
will be awarded a new contract from Cumbria County Council to 
commence July, 2020.  The tender process commences March, 2020.  

Should Richmond Fellowship be awarded the contract, a report will be 
put to HMF for agreement for a new lease to be drawn up between 
Richmond Fellowship and the Council for the duration of the contract with 
Cumbria County Council. 

It is proposed that in agreeing a new lease, the current rent will be 
increased by 2.7% in line with dwelling rents, which would be £41,983.76 
per annum. 

7. Priorities for the Year   

During the financial year there are several factors which will have an 
impact on the service.  To summarise:

7.1 Maintain a balanced Housing Revenue Account
From April, 2020, the Government has agreed that at the end of the 
current social rents policy, they will allow social landlords to increase 
their rents by CPI plus 1% in 2020/21 financial year.

Page 41

Agenda Item 13



This is positive news, however, the number of properties continues to 
reduce requiring the need for continuous financial control and 
consideration of the future models of service delivery. 

7.2 Housing Management System (Cx)

Significant progress has been made with Cx in 2019/20.  A large number 
of the issues experienced post go-live have been resolved following a 
successful upgrade to 18.8.9.  Rent review (year-end) was successful 
and the day-to-day operation of the system has improved considerably. 

2020/21 will see the introduction of Tenant Hub, the new self-serve portal 
for Tenants and also the ability for us to return to sending twice-yearly 
rent statements.

A further upgrade will be scheduled for 2020/21 to further improve the 
functionality of Cx and the user interface.

7.3 Welfare Change

The full service roll out of Universal Credit commenced December, 2018.  
Members will be aware of the change this has introduced and the 
significant affect on our rental income.

It is evident it continues to be a significant risk to the rental income we 
receive and the pressure it puts on the Operations Team to mitigate the 
affect to maximise our income; rent collection will be a key priority for 
staff.

Actions to note:  

 Operations Team to adopt best practice to minimise the risk to the 
income of the service.

 Following a review of the impact on staff workload due to Universal 
Credit, another member of staff is to be recruited; there is provision in 
the 2020/21 budget.

The Bad Debt Provision has increased by £123,290 over the £168,920 
calculated budget from the previous year.  

7.4 Water Rates Collection

The current contract to collect water charges with United Utilities was due 
to end March, 2019.  It was agreed at HMF on 13th September, 2018 the 
contract be extended a further two years (March 2021) to assist with the 
maintenance of the HRA.

The commission the service will receive is c.£193,200 and it is envisaged 
the Council will receive a similar amount in 2021/22.  United Utilities is 
unable to confirm the amount as yet.

Page 42

Agenda Item 13



Summary 

The proposed budget provides assurance that the Council remains focused on 
controlling expenditure to ensure there is sufficient income to maintain the 
stock, provide services our Tenants aspire to and allows for the reduced 
number of dwellings through Right to Buy. 

The use of earmarked HRA reserves gives provision for flexibility in the service 
as well as ensuring a balanced budget over the next financial year 2020/21 
should additional reductions or efficiencies not be identified.

(i) Legal Implications

Statutory requirements as to the keeping of the Housing Revenue Account are 
contained in the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 which include a 
duty under s.76 to budget to prevent a debit balance on the HRA and to 
implement and review the budget.

(ii) Risk Assessment

There is a risk that the underlying budget estimates and assumptions are 
insufficient; this is mitigated as far as possible through the budget setting 
process and the best possible estimates are used, supported by financial 
reserves.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has financial implications as detailed within the report.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation. For those 
service users accessing welfare benefits due to a protected characteristic, the 
increases in rent will be covered by the DWP and support will be provided to 
update journals with the new Housing costs.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 43

Agenda Item 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Housing Revenue Account
Budget 2020-2021

Actual Base Budget Revised
Budget

Base Budget

2018-2019 2019-2020 2019-2020 2020-21

Expenditure

Repairs and maintenance 3,082,299 3,078,920 3,078,920 3,189,150 

Supervision and management 3,218,913 3,415,390 3,455,610 3,493,880

Rents, rates, taxes and other charges 6,303 7,460 11,460 12,500 

Depreciation and impairment of dwellings 1,502,731 1,896,060 1,896,060 1,916,890 

Depreciation and impairment of non-dwelling assets 248,213 175,050 175,050 175,620 

Debt management costs 12,399 12,280 12,280 12,100 

Movement in the allowance for bad debts 137,183 168,920 168,920 292,210 

Total Expenditure 8,208,042 8,754,080 8,798,300 9,092,350 

Income

Dwelling rents (9,843,049) (9,643,970) (9,643,050) (9,713,950) 

Non-dwelling rents (387,384) (400,880) (400,880) (416,790) 

Charges for services and facilities (1,346,423) (1,310,820) (1,521,350) (1,053,020) 

Total Income (11,576,856) (11,355,670) (11,565,280) (11,183,760) 

Net Total (3,368,814) (2,601,590) (2,766,980) (2,091,410) 

HRA services’ share of Corporate and Democratic Core 230,087 197,670 197,670 248,430 

HRA share of other Non Distributed Costs (813) (820) (820) (60) 

Net (Income)/Expenditure for HRA Services (3,139,540) (2,404,740) (2,570,130) (1,843,040) 

HRA share of operating income and expenditure:

Gain or (loss) on sale of HRA non-current assets (103,829) 

Interest payable and similar charges 918,434 934,300 934,300 901,780 

Pensions interest cost and expected return on pension assets 151,753 179,400 179,400 133,100 

(Surplus) or deficit for the year on HRA services (2,173,182) (1,291,040) (1,456,430) (808,160) 

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations

Reversal of depreciation and impairment of non-current assets

Reversal of revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment (112,878) 

Reversal of derecognition of non current assets (72,967) 

Add the voluntary provision for the financing of capital investment 816,520 816,520 816,520 816,520 

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal 610,142 

Debt rescheduling premium and discounts released 0 

Reversal of technical items relating to retirement benefits (304,928) (179,400) (179,400) (133,100) 

Employer’s pension costs 268,880 274,200 274,200 19,020 

Capital expenditure funded by the HRA 0 

Contribution to Earmarked reserves 966,515 379,720 598,060 105,720

Contribution from Earmarked reserves - - - 52,950

Reversal of accumulated absences charges 1,898 

Total Adjustments 2,173,182 1,291,040 1,456,430 808,160 

(Surplus)/Deficit for the Year (0) 0 0 (0) 

Page 45

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	Appendix 1 HMF Mins 30OCT19 - Performance Information Report
	Appendix 2 HMF Mins 30OCT19 - Planning Investment and Planned Maintenance Report

	7 Five-Year Estate-Based Asset Management Plans 2020-2025
	8 Syrian Resettlement Programme
	9 Women's Community Matters: Provision of Top-up Funding
	10 Housing Maintenance Investment Programme 2020-2021
	APPENDIX 1 - Annual Investment Profile (Housing Maintenance)

	11 Hughes Brothers and Sure Group - Fourth Year Review
	12 Adelphi Court: Extension of Lease
	13 Housing Revenue Account 2020-2021
	APPENDIX 1 - HRA Budget Proposals 2020-2021


